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Board of Directors 
KIPP Academy Charter School 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government 
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a 
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the 
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial 
statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such 
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of KIPP Academy Charter School’s internal control. Accordingly, no 
such opinion is expressed. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, 
that raise substantial doubt about KIPP Academy Charter School’s ability to continue as a going 
concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related 
matters that we identified during the audit. 

Supplementary Information 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, 
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has 
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the information 
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

(2) 





 
  

 
 
 

 

           
        
           

 
                       

           
        
        

       
             
       

 
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

ASSETS 
2022 2021 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Grants and Contracts Receivable 
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 
Equipment and Improvements 

$      1,565,935 
762,244 
395,353 
392,754 

$      2,832,390 
390,668 

1,480,557 
223,291 

Total Assets $      3,116,286 $      4,926,906 

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 
Deferred Revenue 
Loans Payable 
Capital Lease Obligation 
Due to KIPP NYC Enterprise 

Total Liabilities 

$        833,002 
247,682 

4,000,000 
53,602 

1,133,046 
6,267,332 

$         660,684 
-

4,000,000 
107,203 

2,062,579 
6,830,466 

NET ASSETS (DEFICIT) 
Without Donor Restrictions 
With Donor Restrictions 

Total Net Assets (Deficit) 

(3,234,327) 
83,281 

(3,151,046) 

(1,950,169) 
46,609 

(1,903,560) 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets (Deficit) $      3,116,286 $      4,926,906 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(4) 
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KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Regular 
Education 

Program Services 
Special 

Education Total 

Support 
Services 

Management 
and General 

Total 
Expenses 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Occupancy 
Litigation and Legal Services Fees 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Supplies and Materials 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Academic Programming 
Telephone and Internet 
Other Professional Fees 
Miscellaneous 
Insurance 
Professional Development 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Field Lessons 
Events 
Interest Expense 
Printing and Publications 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Uncollectible Receivables 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Postage and Shipping 
Student Transportation and Other Fees 
Bank and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 

$      11,913,203 
3,268,967 

35,998 
1,392,238 

811,023 
791,844 
636,458 
612,364 
330,650 
250,524 
210,762 
207,567 

-
186,428 
117,718 
56,716 
50,506 
36,415 
25,001 

-
20,338 
14,449 
10,230 
6,649 
1,682 
1,284 

$          749,861 
162,630 

-
-
-
-
-
-

1,077 
-

21,098 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 12,663,064 
3,431,597 

35,998 
1,392,238 

811,023 
791,844 
636,458 
612,364 
331,727 
250,524 
231,860 
207,567 

-
186,428 
117,718 
56,716 
50,506 
36,415 
25,001 

-
20,338 
14,449 
10,230 
6,649 
1,682 
1,284 

$ -
-

2,772,941 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

186,465 
-
-
-
-
-
-

23,014 
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 12,663,064 
3,431,597 
2,808,939 
1,392,238 

811,023 
791,844 
636,458 
612,364 
331,727 
250,524 
231,860 
207,567 
186,465 
186,428 
117,718 
56,716 
50,506 
36,415 
25,001 
23,014 
20,338 
14,449 
10,230 
6,649 
1,682 
1,284 

Total Expenditures $      20,989,014 $          934,666 $      21,923,680 $        2,982,420 $ 24,906,100 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(6) 



 
  

 
 
 
 

 

                                   
                                                                   
                                                                        
                                                                                       
                                                                                       
                                                                                       
                                                                                       
                                                                                       
                                                                                  
                                                                                       
                                                                                                  
                                                                                       
                                                                                  
                                                                             
                                                                                          
                                                                                          
                                                                                       
                                                                                          
                                                                                                    
                                                                                          
                                                                                          
                                                                                                
                                                                                                
                                                                                                
                                                                                                
                                                                                                

       

 
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Support 
Program Services Services 

Employee Wages 
Payroll Taxes and Employee Benefits 
Licensing and Management Fee 
Supplies and Materials 
Occupancy 
Technology Equipment and Materials 
Equipment and Maintenance 
Litigation and Legal Services Fees 
Academic Programming 
Depreciation and Amortization 
Insurance 
Telephone and Internet 
Professional Development 
Other Professional Fees 
Interest Expense 
Printing and Publications 
Events 
Memberships and Subscriptions 
Accounting and Audit Services Fees 
Miscellaneous 
Use of Donated Materials and Services 
Postage and Shipping 
Bank and Other Fees 
Uncollectible Receivables 
Student Transportation and Other Fees 
Candidate Recruiting 

Regular 
Education 

$      11,159,868 
3,310,987 

36,586 
734,547 
533,343 
521,392 
249,068 
212,571 
187,789 
171,141 

-
146,796 
145,542 
105,595 

61,100 
37,942 
32,965 
30,697 

-
15,222 
10,986 
8,263 
5,674 
2,196 
1,586 
1,349 

$       

Special 
Education 

1,007,243 
152,793 

-
-
-
-
-
-

458 
-
-
-

758 
21,474 

-
-

15 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

Total 

12,167,111 
3,463,780 

36,586 
734,547 
533,343 
521,392 
249,068 
212,571 
188,247 
171,141 

-
146,796 
146,300 
127,069 
61,100 
37,942 
32,980 
30,697 

-
15,222 
10,986 
8,263 
5,674 
2,196 
1,586 
1,349 

Management 
and General 

$ -
-

2,515,219 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

164,367 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

21,866 
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

$ 

Total 
Expenses 

12,167,111 
3,463,780 
2,551,805 

734,547 
533,343 
521,392 
249,068 
212,571 
188,247 
171,141 
164,367 
146,796 
146,300 
127,069 
61,100 
37,942 
32,980 
30,697 
21,866 
15,222 
10,986 
8,263 
5,674 
2,196 
1,586 
1,349 

Total Expenditures $      17,723,205 $       1,182,741 $      18,905,946 $        2,701,452 $ 21,607,398 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(7) 



 
  

 
 
 
 

 

                   
            
          
                  

                                 
                                 

                              
                              
                        
                   

                  

                

                      

                     
                  
                      
                                  
                     
                   

 
 

 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from Local, State, and Federal Sources 
Receipts from Others 
Payments to Suppliers and Vendors 
Payments to Employees 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition of Capital Assets 

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Repayments of Loans Payable 
Gain on Extinguishment of Paycheck Protection Program Loan 
Repayments of Capital Lease Obligation 

Net Cash Used By Financing Activities 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

Cash and Cash Equivalents – Beginning of Year 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS – END OF YEAR 

$    

$      

2022 

23,433,515 
101,205 

(11,797,329) 
(12,663,064) 

(925,673) 

(287,181) 
(287,181) 

-
-

(53,601) 
(53,601) 

(1,266,455) 

2,832,390 

1,565,935 

$    

$      

2021 

21,905,037 
2,023,935 

(8,468,443) 
(12,167,111) 

3,293,418 

-
-

(1,000,000) 
(1,893,667) 

(53,602) 
(2,947,269) 

346,149 

2,486,241 

2,832,390 

RECONCILIATION OF CHANGE IN NET ASSETS TO NET CASH
  PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

Change in Net Assets 
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets to Net Cash 
  Provided (Used) by Operating Activities: 

Depreciation and Amortization 
Change in Assets and Liabilities: 

Grants and Contracts Receivable 
Prepaid Expenses and Other Assets 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses 
Deferred Revenue 
Due to KIPP NYC Enterprise 

Total Adjustments 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH OPERATING
  AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

Gain on Extinguishment of Paycheck Protection Program Loan 

$     

$        

$                    

(1,247,486) 

117,718 

(371,576) 
1,085,204 

172,318 
247,682 

(929,533) 
321,813 

(925,673) 

-

$      

$      

$      

2,186,577 

171,141 

134,997 
(392,693) 
475,544 

-
717,852 

1,106,841 

3,293,418 

1,893,667 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(8) 



 
  

 
 
 

 
   

  
   

  
  

  
 

  

 
  

 
 

   
 

 
  

  
   

 
 

  
  

  
   

  
 

     
 

 
   

 
   
  

  
 

 
 

   
    

   
 

 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Nature of Operations 
KIPP Academy Charter School (the School) is an education corporation that operates as a 
charter school in the borough of the Bronx, New York City. On May 4, 2000, the board of 
regents of the city of New York for and on behalf of the State Education Department, 
granted the School a provisional charter valid for a term of five years from the effective date 
of September 1, 2000 and renewable upon expiration. The provisional charter was renewed 
on April 14, 2015 and is effective through June 30, 2019. In June 2019, an additional five-
year renewal was granted for the School’s charter through June 30, 2024. 

The School’s mission is to prepare students with the academic and character skills 
necessary to succeed in high school, college, and the competitive world beyond. 

In fiscal years 2022 and 2021, the School served classes for students in grades 
kindergarten through twelve. 

The major source of revenue and support for the School is from state and local funding on a 
per pupil basis. The New York City Department of Food Services provides free and reduced-
price lunches and the New York City Department of Transportation provides transportation 
vouchers directly to a majority of the School’s students. Amounts with respect to these items 
are not included in these financial statements. 

Financial Statement Presentation 
The financial statements of the School have been prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in accordance with established accounting standards for nonprofit entities. The 
financial statements have been prepared to focus on the School as a whole and to present 
balances and transactions according to the existence or absence of donor-imposed 
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified as follows: 

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor-imposed stipulations 
will be met either by actions of the School or by the passage of time. 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets not subject to donor-imposed 
stipulations.  

Revenue is reported as an increase in net assets without donor restrictions unless their use 
is restricted by explicit donor-imposed stipulation or by law. Expenses are reported as 
decreases in net assets without donor restrictions. Expiration of restrictions on net assets 
are reported as net assets released from restrictions. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

(9) 



 
  

 
 
 

 

 
   

 

 
 

  
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 
 
 

   
  

  
 

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
   

    
    

 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits. 

Grants and Contract Receivables 
Grants and contract receivables primarily consist of amounts due from the New York 
Department of Education for federal and state subsidy programs and private grants. Grants 
and contract receivables are stated at the amount management expects to collect from 
outstanding balances. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, no allowance was warranted. 

Governmental Funding 
Revenue from the state and local governments resulting from the School’s charter status is 
based on the number of students enrolled. The revenue is recorded when services are 
performed in accordance with the charter agreement. Federal and state funds are 
recognized by the School when the conditions are met. 

Revenue from other government grants to which the School is entitled is recognized mostly 
on student enrollment. Some grants are provided for specific educational endeavors which 
are not based on student enrollment and are recorded when conditions are met by the grant 
agreement and/or the incurrence of allowable qualifying expenses. Amounts received are 
recognized as revenue when the School has incurred expenditures in compliance with 
specific contract or grant provisions. 

Federal and state funds received prior to the services provided or the related expenditures 
being incurred are deferred and recorded as refundable advances in the statement of 
financial position. The School received cost reimbursable grants of $247,682 and $0 that 
have not been recognized at June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, because qualifying 
expenditures have not yet been incurred. 

Contributions 
The School reports gifts of cash and other assets as restricted support if they are received 
with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor restriction 
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is 
accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to net assets without 
restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from 
restrictions. A contribution is conditional if a right of return or right of release exists as well 
as a barrier. The conditional contribution is recognized once the conditions have been met. 

Donated Goods and Services 
Donated goods and services are recorded at their fair value when such services are 
rendered or goods are donated. Contributed services are recognized as contributions if the 
services: (a) create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) required specialized skills and are 
performed by people with those skills and would otherwise be purchased by the School and 
(c) are measurable. 

(10) 



 
  

 
 
 

 

 
   

   
 

     
  

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

   

 
 

  
    

  
 

 

   

  
 

 
  

 
 

  
 

 
 

 
    

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Equipment, Improvements, Depreciation, and Amortization 
Equipment is recorded at cost. The School capitalizes purchases of equipment in excess of 
$2,500. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
lives of the respective assets. Equipment acquired with certain government contract funds 
are recorded as expenses when the grantor retains title. 

Improvements to the facility are amortized over the useful life as there is no set lease term 
for the school building. 

Allocation of Functional Expenses 
The costs of providing services have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statements of activities and in the statements of functional expenses. Allocation of expenses 
to program services and supporting services is completed by direct expenses related to 
each function. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 
The School maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed 
federally insured limits. 

Income Taxes 
The School is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal 
Revenue Code (IRC) and applicable income tax regulations of the state of New York. No 
provision for income taxes has been established, as the School has no unrelated business 
activity. 

Uncertain Tax Positions 
The School recognizes and measures its unrecognized tax benefits in accordance with 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 
740, Income Taxes. Using that guidance, tax positions initially need to be recognized in the 
financial statements when it is more likely than not that the positions will be sustained upon 
examination by the taxing authorities. It also provides guidance for derecognition, 
classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and 
transition. 

As of June 30, 2022, the School had no uncertain tax positions that qualified for either 
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. Additionally, the School had no interest 
or penalties related to income taxes. 

Subsequent Events 
In preparing these financial statements, the School has evaluated events and transactions 
for potential recognition or disclosure through October 28, 2022, the date the financial 
statements were available to be issued. 

(11) 



 
  

 
 
 

 

 
  

 
   

    
   

   
 

 
   

 

    
 

 
                      

 
 

 

   
 

 
   

 
  

 
  

 
 

  
     

 
  

 
 

  

  
 

                
           
                      
                
              

 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 2 LIQUIDITY 

The School regularly monitors liquidity required to meet its operating needs and 
commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of available funds. For 
purposes of analyzing resources available to meet general expenditures over the next year,
the School considers all expenditures related to its ongoing school activities of teaching,
educating, and other school activities. In addition to financial assets available to meet
general expenditures over the next year, the School operates with a balanced budget and
anticipates collecting sufficient revenue from state and local per pupil subsidy, federal and 
state grants and contributions in the next fiscal year to cover general expenditures. 

As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the following financial assets could be readily made available 
within one year of the statement of financial position date to meet general expenditures: 

2022 2021 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $      1,565,935 $      2,832,390 
Grants and Contracts Receivable 762,244 390,668 

Total $      2,328,179 $      3,223,058 

NOTE 3 KIPP NYC ENTERPRISE TRANSACTIONS 

The School is related to KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools through overlapping governance. 
Although not formally related to any other organizations, the School’s mission is aligned with 
a set of other tax exempt organizations, all of which support education in New York City. 
The other mission-aligned tax exempt organizations include KIPP New York, Inc. (including 
its wholly owned subsidiary limited liability companies) and KIPP Facilities Holdings, Inc.
(including its wholly owned subsidiary limited liability companies), collectively referred to as
the KIPP NYC Enterprise. From time to time, these organizations support each other
through access to capital in support of their missions. Amounts due between these entities
are reflected on the balance sheet as Due to KIPP NYC Enterprise. 

Amounts due to and from the KIPP NYC Enterprise represent short-term timing differences
of expenses incurred on behalf of the School that have not been paid or received as of the
financial statement date. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the School owed the KIPP NYC 
Enterprise a total of $1,133,046 and $2,062,579, respectively. 

NOTE 4 EQUIPMENT AND IMPROVEMENTS 

Equipment and improvements consist of the following: 

2022 2021 
Furniture and Fixtures $           98,020 $           98,020 
Technology 2,037,166 1,953,823 
Leasehold Improvements 744,635 744,635 
Equipment 465,678 260,678 

Total 3,345,499 3,057,156 
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (2,952,745) (2,833,865) 

Total Equipment and Improvements $         392,754 $         223,291 

(12) 



 
  

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
   
    

  
   

   
  

   
 

    

 
  

  
 

     
 

                       
                       
        

 
 

  

 
 

                          
                                           
                                        

 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 5 LOANS PAYABLE 

In July 2019, the School entered into a $5,500,000 Revolver Agreement with KIPP New 
York, Inc. The purpose of the Agreement is to provide cash flow relief to meet operational 
expenses. The interest rate on funds borrowed under the Agreement was 2.12% and it 
expired May 31, 2020. During May 2020, an amendment to the agreement was completed 
with an updated interest rate of 0.9% and a maturity date as of May 30, 2023. As of June 30, 
2022 and 2021, the total amount outstanding was $4,000,000.  Subsequent to June 30, 
2022, the School and KIPP New York, Inc. amended the terms of the agreement to extend 
the maturity date to May 30, 2026. 

In May 2020, the School received a loan in the amount of $1,877,567 to fund payroll through 
the Paycheck Protection Program (the PPP Loan). The School recorded the loan as long-
term debt under FASB ASC 470 as of June 30, 2020. The PPP Loan bears interest at 1% 
per annum. During the year ended June 30, 2021, the Small Business Administration 
formally forgave the loan in full along with interest of $16,100, therefore, the School 
recorded a gain on extinguishment of debt on the accompanying statement of activities. 

Minimum loan payments for each year subsequent to June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2023 $                     -
2024 -
2025 -
2026 4,000,000 
Total $      4,000,000 

NOTE 6 RESTRICTIONS ON NET ASSET BALANCES 

Net assets with donor restrictions were available for the following purposes at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Purpose Restrictions: 

Arts and Music Programs $             2,365 $             2,365 
Academic Programs 80,881 44,156 
Athletic Programs - 53 
Emergency Assistance Fund 35 35 

Total $           83,281 $           46,609 

(13) 



 
  

 
 
 

 

 
   

 

                                           
                                    
                                    

 
 

  

  
    

      
   

   
  

 
  

  
   

 
   

  
 

 
 

 

   
  

 
 

   
 

 
 

 

 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 7 RESTRICTION RELEASES ON NET BALANCES 

Net assets with donor restrictions were released for the following purposes at June 30: 

2022 2021 
Purpose Restrictions: 

Academic Programs $                177 $             4,566 
Student Food 52 -
Emergency Assistance Fund - 13,230 
Opportunity Fund - 72,973 

Total $                229 $           90,769 

NOTE 8 PENSION PLAN 

The School is part of the KIPP NYC 403(b) Retirement Plan, a multiemployer defined 
contribution plan, under Section 403(b) of the IRC which employees of the School can elect 
to contribute. Employees, whom option for this plan, can contribute up to the level set by the 
Internal Revenue Service. The Employer match is a discretionary contribution. The employer 
contributions to this plan amounted $167,543 and $163,683 for the years ended June 30, 
2022 and 2021, respectively. 

The School also contributes to the Teachers Retirement System of the City of New York, a 
multiemployer defined benefit pension plan (the Plan), on behalf of the eligible teachers. The 
Plan provides New York City educators with retirement, disability, and death benefit 
services. The School’s participation in the Plan constitutes less than 1% of total Plan 
contributions. The funded status of the Plan was 78.4% at June 30, 2019, the date of the 
most recent actuarial calculation as indicated in the June 30, 2021 Plan audit. The amount 
charged to operations for contributions to this Plan amounted to $341,872 and $523,166 for 
the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

NOTE 9 CAPITAL LEASE OBLIGATIONS 

In September 2018, the School and KIPP NYC Public Charter School entered into a lease 
for computer equipment under a capital lease that expires in 2023. As of June 30, 2022 and 
2021, the leased equipment is reflected at a cost of $317,586 and related accumulated 
depreciation of $263,984 and $210,382, respectively. The lease requires annual payments 
of principal of $53,602. The capital lease agreement states the total annual payments are 
equal to the cost value of the leased equipment and no interest is included in the payments. 

Future minimum payments under the capital lease as of June 30, 2022 are as follows: 

Year Ending June 30, Amount 
2023 $           53,602 

Total Capital Lease Payments $           53,602 

(14) 



 
  

 
 
 

 

 
  

 
    

 
 

  
 

 
  

 
 

 
  

  
 
 

  

 
  

  

 
 

 

  
 

  
  

  

 
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 10 SCHOOL FACILITY 

The School occupies three facilities to support its operations. Approximately 25,000 square 
feet of dedicated and shared space located at 250 East 156th St. in the South Bronx, New 
York is occupied through an agreement with the New York City Department of Education, 
which provides the space at no cost. The School is responsible for any overtime-related 
costs for services provided beyond regular opening hours. These costs have been included 
in building costs in the accompanying statements of functional expenses. 

The School also jointly occupies approximately 132,500 square feet of space at 201 East 
144th St. in the South Bronx where the joint high school for KIPP Academy Charter School 
and KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools resides. The facility was provided to the School at no 
cost, but the School must provide for continuing maintenance and operating expenses. The 
expenses are also included in building costs in the accompanying statements of functional 
expenses. The School also occupies the Mott Haven Facility. 

NOTE 11 TRADEMARK LICENSE AGREEMENT 

The School has entered into a trademark license agreement with KIPP Foundation subject 
to a license fee of 1% per pupil operating revenue not to exceed $30,000 per elementary 
school, middle school, or high school. For the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, the 
School incurred licensing fees amounting to $35,998 and $36,586, respectively. 

NOTE 12 SHARED SERVICES AGREEMENT 

The School is party to a fee agreement with KIPP NYC, LLC, a wholly owned disregarded 
entity of KIPP New York, Inc., for the back-office functions. The management fee is 12% of 
the revenue as defined in the shared services agreement. The School incurred a 
management fee to KIPP NYC, LLC in the amount of $2,772,941 and $2,515,219 for the 
years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The amount due to KIPP NYC, LLC for 
shared services was $89,090 and $170,697, respectively, and the totals are include in 
accounts payable as of June 30, 2022 and 2021. 

(15) 



 
  

 
 
 

 

 
 

    
  

 
 

 
  

   
  

   
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

   
   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2022 AND 2021 

NOTE 13 OPERATING EXPENSES 

Operating expenses are presented in the statements of functional expenses, classified 
according to the significant program activity related to the purpose for which the school 
exists or supporting service. 

The significant activities are: 

Program Services – Regular Education and Special Education 
Represents work (time and materials) that is specifically related to or necessary for the 
programming aspects of the School under the regular education and special education 
areas. The activities and related costs directly affecting students or parents fall under these 
program areas. 

Support Services 
Management and General 
Time and materials relating to operating the nonprogrammatic/back-end operational 
functions of the School are reflected as management and general expenses. These 
expenses include, but are not limited to, human resources, finance, and technology 
activities. 

NOTE 14 CONTINGENCY 

Certain grants and contracts may be subject to audit by the funding sources. Such audits 
might result in disallowances of costs submitted for reimbursement. Management is of the 
opinion that such cost disallowances, if any, will not have a material effect on the 
accompanying financial statements for such potential claims. Accordingly, no amounts have 
been provided in the accompanying financial statements for such potential claims. 

(16) 
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KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

NOTE 1 GENERAL INFORMATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents the activities of the 
federal financial assistance programs of KIPP Academy Charter School (the School). 
Financial awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as financial assistance 
passed through other governmental agencies or nonprofit organizations, are included in the 
schedule. 

NOTE 2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant 
activity of the School and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in 
this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. 

NOTE 3 RELATIONSHIP TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The schedule of expenditures of federal awards presents only a selected portion of the 
activities of the School. It is not intended to, nor does it, present either the balance sheet, 
revenue, expenditures, or changes in net assets. The financial activity for the 
aforementioned awards is reported in the School’s statements of activities. 

NOTE 4 INDIRECT COST RATE 

KIPP Academy Charter School has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

(18) 









 

 

    
    

 
 

   
  

  
      

  
    

   
  

 
 

 
  

 
   

 
 

  
 

 
   

 
 

  
   

 
 

   
 

  
 

Board of Directors 
KIPP Academy Charter School 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 
opinion on KIPP Academy Charter School’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will 
always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance 
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the 
compliance requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the 
report on compliance about KIPP Academy Charter School’s compliance with the requirements of each 
major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 
Guidance, we: 

 exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 

 identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding KIPP Academy Charter School’s compliance 
with the compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as 
we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

 obtain an understanding of KIPP Academy Charter School’s internal control over compliance 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the 
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
KIPP Academy Charter School’s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion 
is expressed. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

(22) 





 
  

 
 
 
 

 

 
  

 
 

 
  

 
   

 
         

 
 

  
       

 
 

           
 
 

 
 

   
 

            
 

  
  
                           

 
  

 
  

 
                     

 
 

  
 
    
 
  

 

 
   

 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results 

Financial Statements 

1. Type of auditors’ report issued: Unmodified 

2. Internal control over financial reporting: 

 Material weakness(es) identified?  yes  X  no 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified
that are not considered to be 
material weakness(es)?  yes X   none reported 

3. Noncompliance material to financial 
statements noted?  yes   X  no 

Federal Awards 

1. Internal control over major federal programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified?  yes  X  no 

 Significant deficiency(ies) identified 
that are not considered to be 
material weakness(es)?  yes  X  none reported 

2. Type of auditors’ report issued on 
compliance for major federal programs: Unmodified 

3. Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with 
2 CFR 200.516(a)?  yes  X  no 

Identification of Major Federal Programs 

Assistance Listing Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

84.425D U.S. Department of Education – Elementary and
Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund
(ESSER I and II) 

84.425U U.S. Department of Education – American 
Rescue Plan Fund (ARP) 

(24) 



 
  

 
 
 
 

 

 
  

 
 

  
 

                 
 
 

  
 

 

 
 

  
 

  

 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 

KIPP ACADEMY CHARTER SCHOOL 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022 

Section I – Summary of Auditors’ Results (Continued) 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A or Type B programs was: $ 750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?   X  yes  no 

Section II – Financial Statement Findings 

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards. 

Section III – Findings and Questioned Costs – Major Federal Programs 

Our audit did not disclose any matters required to be reported in accordance with the Federal Single 
Audit Act. 

Section IV – Prior Audit Findings 

There were no prior year findings required to be reported under the Federal Single Audit Act. 

(25) 









 

    
  

   
 

  

 
   

    

  

 
       

 

 
 

   
  

    
      

    
    

   
 

 
 

 

  
 

 

 
      

  

  

 

Board of Directors 
KIPP Academy Charter School 
Page 2 

Management’s estimate of the functional allocation of expenses shared between programs, 
management and general, and fundraising is based on a reasonable and consistent basis using 
factors such as direct payroll allocation, square footage, full time equivalents within each 
department, and total direct expenses. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to 
develop the allocation in determining that it is reasonable in relation to the financial statements 
taken as a whole. 

Financial statement disclosures 
Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial 
statement users. There were no particularly sensitive financial statement disclosures. 

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear. 

Difficulties encountered in performing the audit 
The completion of the audit was delayed for matters with the timing of the finance department’s 
completion of certain reconciliations and audit information. 

Uncorrected misstatements 
Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than 
those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. 
Management has corrected all such misstatements. 

Corrected misstatements  
None of the misstatements detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were 
material, either individually or in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole. 

Disagreements with management 
For purposes of this communication, a disagreement with management is a disagreement on a financial 
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be 
significant to the financial statements or the auditors’ report. No such disagreements arose during our 
audit 

Management representations 
We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management 
representation letter dated October 28, 2022. 

Management consultations with other independent accountants 
In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting 
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application 
of an accounting principle to the entity’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditors’ 
opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting 
accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, 
there were no such consultations with other accountants. 





 
 

  
  

 
   

  
   

  
  

 

  
 

  

 
 

   
 

 
  

 

 
 

  

 
  

   
 

    

Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and KIPP Academy Charter School (collectively, “KIPP NYC”) has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 
Municipal Law (hereafter “the Municipal Law”) and in § 715-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 
each of the Corporations. The Schools will be referred to herein, individually, as “the 
Corporation.” 

Definitions: 

“Affiliate” means an entity controlled by, in control of, or under common control with the 
Corporation. 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

“Board” means the Board of Trustees. 

“Compensation” means direct or indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors.  A gift or favor 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

“Corporation” refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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“Financial Interest”: A person has a “Financial Interest” in a transaction if such person would 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement.  

“Independent Director” means a Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 
three fiscal years, exceeds the lesser of $25,000 or 2 % of such entity’s consolidated gross 
revenues. For these purposes, “payment” does not include charitable contributions. 

“Key Employee” includes but is not limited to any person who is in a position to exercise 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

“Related Party”  means: (1) any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

“Relative” means an individual’s spouse or domestic partner, as defined in Public Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

“School” any school managed by the Corporation. 
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“Trustees” and “Officers” are the elected individuals responsible for managing the affairs of the 
Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” arises when the personal, professional or 
financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized and the Related Party has a “substantial” 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction.   

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 
Board’s consideration of any alternative transactions.  The minutes shall also contain the names 
of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects:  

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 

6 





 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
 

  
 

    
 

 
 

     
   

 
 

 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 

   
 

 

 

 
  

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

    

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member 

Name:  
  

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation): 

    

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 

  

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation? 
 ____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school? 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 
 

4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any 
student currently enrolled in the school? 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 

 

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school? 



 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

    
 
 
 

 
 
 

  

    

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 

 

6. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; 
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities? 

 ____Yes ____No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.  

7. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 

interest/transacti 
on 

Steps taken to 
avoid a conflict 

of interest, 
(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

P l e a s e  w r i t e  “ N o n e ”  i f  a p p l i c a b l e .  D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  



  
 

 

 
 

 
     

 

 
  

 

 

 

  

_______________________________ 

    

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the 
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.” 

Organization 
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximat
e value of 

the 
business 

conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business
with the school(s) and 

the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 

P l e a s e  w r i t

 

e  “ N o n e ”  i f  a p p l i c a b l e . D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  

 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law.  Personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 



    



 
 

  
  

 
   

  
   

  
  

 

  
 

  

 
 

   
 

 
  

 

 
 

  

 
  

   
 

    

Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and KIPP Academy Charter School (collectively, “KIPP NYC”) has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 
Municipal Law (hereafter “the Municipal Law”) and in § 715-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 
each of the Corporations. The Schools will be referred to herein, individually, as “the 
Corporation.” 

Definitions: 

“Affiliate” means an entity controlled by, in control of, or under common control with the 
Corporation. 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

“Board” means the Board of Trustees. 

“Compensation” means direct or indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors.  A gift or favor 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

“Corporation” refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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“Financial Interest”: A person has a “Financial Interest” in a transaction if such person would 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement.  

“Independent Director” means a Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 
three fiscal years, exceeds the lesser of $25,000 or 2 % of such entity’s consolidated gross 
revenues. For these purposes, “payment” does not include charitable contributions. 

“Key Employee” includes but is not limited to any person who is in a position to exercise 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

“Related Party”  means: (1) any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

“Relative” means an individual’s spouse or domestic partner, as defined in Public Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

“School” any school managed by the Corporation. 
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“Trustees” and “Officers” are the elected individuals responsible for managing the affairs of the 
Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” arises when the personal, professional or 
financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized and the Related Party has a “substantial” 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction.   

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 
Board’s consideration of any alternative transactions.  The minutes shall also contain the names 
of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects:  

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and KIPP Academy Charter School (collectively, “KIPP NYC”) has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 
Municipal Law (hereafter “the Municipal Law”) and in § 715-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 
each of the Corporations. The Schools will be referred to herein, individually, as “the 
Corporation.” 

Definitions: 

“Affiliate” means an entity controlled by, in control of, or under common control with the 
Corporation. 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

“Board” means the Board of Trustees. 

“Compensation” means direct or indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors.  A gift or favor 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

“Corporation” refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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“Financial Interest”: A person has a “Financial Interest” in a transaction if such person would 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement.  

“Independent Director” means a Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 
three fiscal years, exceeds the lesser of $25,000 or 2 % of such entity’s consolidated gross 
revenues. For these purposes, “payment” does not include charitable contributions. 

“Key Employee” includes but is not limited to any person who is in a position to exercise 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

“Related Party”  means: (1) any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

“Relative” means an individual’s spouse or domestic partner, as defined in Public Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

“School” any school managed by the Corporation. 

2 



 
 

  

 

  
   

 

 
 

  
   

 
  

 

 

  

 
 

 
 

  
   

 
 

  
 

 
  
  

 

    

“Trustees” and “Officers” are the elected individuals responsible for managing the affairs of the 
Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” arises when the personal, professional or 
financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized and the Related Party has a “substantial” 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction.   

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 
Board’s consideration of any alternative transactions.  The minutes shall also contain the names 
of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects:  

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and KIPP Academy Charter School (collectively, “KIPP NYC”) has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 
Municipal Law (hereafter “the Municipal Law”) and in § 715-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 
each of the Corporations. The Schools will be referred to herein, individually, as “the 
Corporation.” 

Definitions: 

“Affiliate” means an entity controlled by, in control of, or under common control with the 
Corporation. 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

“Board” means the Board of Trustees. 

“Compensation” means direct or indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors.  A gift or favor 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

“Corporation” refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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“Financial Interest”: A person has a “Financial Interest” in a transaction if such person would 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement.  

“Independent Director” means a Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 
three fiscal years, exceeds the lesser of $25,000 or 2 % of such entity’s consolidated gross 
revenues. For these purposes, “payment” does not include charitable contributions. 

“Key Employee” includes but is not limited to any person who is in a position to exercise 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

“Related Party”  means: (1) any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

“Relative” means an individual’s spouse or domestic partner, as defined in Public Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

“School” any school managed by the Corporation. 
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“Trustees” and “Officers” are the elected individuals responsible for managing the affairs of the 
Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” arises when the personal, professional or 
financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized and the Related Party has a “substantial” 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction.   

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 
Board’s consideration of any alternative transactions.  The minutes shall also contain the names 
of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects:  

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 
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Conflicts of Interest Policy 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools & KIPP Academy Charter School 

Purpose: 

KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools and KIPP Academy Charter School (collectively, “KIPP NYC”) has 
adopted a Code of Ethics setting forth for the guidance of trustees, officers and employees the 
standards of conduct expected of them, including standards with respect to disclosure of 
conflicts of interest regarding any matter brought or required to be brought before their 
respective Boards. The Conflict of Interest Policy is part of the Codes of Ethics adopted by each 
of the Corporations. It provides procedures for addressing, disclosing, and documenting 
conflicts of interest as such term in used in §§ 800 through 806 of the New York State General 
Municipal Law (hereafter “the Municipal Law”) and in § 715-a of the Not-for-Profit Corporation 
Law. It also includes procedures for addressing Related Party Transactions, as such term is 
defined in § 102 (24) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law. The Policy supplements, and does 
not replace any applicable provisions of the General Municipal Law and other state and federal 
laws governing conflicts of interest. It applies to all Trustees, Officers and Key Employees of 
each of the Corporations. The Schools will be referred to herein, individually, as “the 
Corporation.” 

Definitions: 

“Affiliate” means an entity controlled by, in control of, or under common control with the 
Corporation. 

“Audit Committee” means the Audit Committee of the Corporation, as described in the By-laws 
of the Corporation. The Audit Committee is comprised of at least three Trustees who are 
Independent Directors as defined in § 102 (21) of the Not-for-Profit Corporation Law and in this 
Policy. 

“Board” means the Board of Trustees. 

“Compensation” means direct or indirect remuneration, as well as gifts or favors.  A gift or favor 
that is valued at $75 or more is expressly prohibited by the Municipal Law when offered to a 
Trustee, Officer or Key Employee in connection with official duties, but gifts of lesser value may 
also be subject to this policy. 

“Corporation” refers to each of the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools which have adopted this 
policy and which are Education Corporations and, as such, subject to provisions of the Not-for-
Profit Corporation Law made applicable to education corporations by § 216-a of the Education 
Law.  Each Corporation, as a chartered entity, is also subject to the Conflict of Interest 
Provisions of §§ 800 through 806 of the General Municipal Law, 
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“Financial Interest”: A person has a “Financial Interest” in a transaction if such person would 
receive an economic benefit, directly or indirectly, from such transaction or compensation 
agreement.  

“Independent Director” means a Trustee who (i) is not, and has not been within the last three 
years, an employee of the Corporation or an Affiliate and does not have a Relative who is, or 
has been within the last three years, a Key Employee of the Corporation  or of an Affiliate; (ii) 
has not received, and does not have a Relative who has received, in any of the last three fiscal 
years, more than $10,000 in direct compensation from the Corporation or from an Affiliate 
(other than reimbursement for expenses reasonably incurred as a Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee); and (iii) is not a current employee of, or does not have a substantial financial 
interest in, and does not have a Relative who is a current officer of or who has a substantial 
financial interest in, any entity that has made payments to, or received payments from the 
Corporation or from an Affiliate for property or services in an amount which, in any of the last 
three fiscal years, exceeds the lesser of $25,000 or 2 % of such entity’s consolidated gross 
revenues. For these purposes, “payment” does not include charitable contributions. 

“Key Employee” includes but is not limited to any person who is in a position to exercise 
substantial influence over the Corporation, as defined from time to time by the Corporation, or 
who has or shares authority to control or determine a substantial portion of the operating 
budgets of the Corporation or the schools or compensation for employees. 

“Related Party”  means: (1) any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate; (2) A Relative of any Trustee, Officer, or Key Employee of the Corporation or an 
Affiliate or (3) any entity in which any individual described in clause (1) or (2) of this definition 
has a 35% or greater ownership or beneficial interest, except that in the case of a partnership 
or professional corporation, a Related Party will include an entity in which any individual 
described in clause (1) or (2) above has a direct or indirect ownership interest in excess of 5%. 

“Related Party Transaction” means any transaction or agreement or other kind of arrangement 
between the Corporation and a Related Party or an entity in which the Related Party has an 
interest. Related Party Transactions are subject to special provisions for disclosure, evaluation 
and documentation. In addition, certain Related Party Transactions are subject to limitations 
described in the Municipal Law. These special provisions and limitations are summarized in this 
Policy. 

“Relative” means an individual’s spouse or domestic partner, as defined in Public Health Law 
§2994-a, ancestors, siblings (whether whole or half-blood), children (whether natural or 
adopted), grandchildren, great grandchildren and spouses or domestic partners of ancestors, 
siblings, children, grandchildren, and great-grandchildren. Children of siblings and their spouses 
and partners will also be considered Relatives under this Policy. 

“School” any school managed by the Corporation. 
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“Trustees” and “Officers” are the elected individuals responsible for managing the affairs of the 
Corporation as described in the By-laws.  

What is a Conflict of Interest? 

For purposes of this Policy, a “Conflict of Interest” arises when the personal, professional or 
financial interests of a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee diverge or may potentially diverge from 
the interests of the Corporation.  A conflict of interest will arise when a transaction involving 
the Corporation could financially harm or benefit a person covered by this Policy, but a conflict 
of interest does not always involve financial interests.  A conflict may also involve the use of the 
services or facilities of the Corporation or may involve the use of staff assistance for purposes 
other than carrying out professional or fiduciary duties. 

Conflicts may also arise if a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee is asked to communicate on behalf 
of a person or firm with the Corporation. Accordingly, a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee may 
not communicate with the Board or a School on behalf of a person or a firm, unless requested 
to do so by the Corporation, and shall avoid engaging in activities that would appear to be 
unduly influenced by other persons who have a special interest in matters under consideration 
by the Trustee of the Corporation or employees of one of the Schools.  If a Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee inadvertently engages in such activities, he/she shall promptly notify the Board in 
writing of such activities and shall disclose all known facts prior to participating in a Board 
discussion of these matters. 

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest: 

Written disclosure of all potential Conflicts of Interest is required of Trustees, Officers and Key 
Employees prior to election or appointment and annually thereafter.  However, Conflicts of 
Interest may arise between annual updates and, accordingly, an individual with a duality of 
interest shall disclose the potential Conflict (a) prior to voting on or otherwise discharging his or 
her duties with respect to any matter involving the potential Conflict; (b) prior to entering into 
any contract or transaction involving the Corporation; and (c) as soon as possible after he or she 
learns of an actual or potential Conflict of Interest. Disclosure of the material facts surrounding 
the Conflict of Interest shall be made to the Chairperson of the Board and the Chairperson of 
the Audit Committee. The interested Trustee or Officer shall thereafter refrain from 
participating in deliberations and decisions relating to the matter unless he or she is asked for 
information by the Chairperson of the Board or the Audit Committee. 

The existence and resolution (as applicable) of any reported Conflict of Interest shall be 
documented in the appropriate records of the Corporation, including in the minutes of any 
meeting at which the Conflict of Interest was discussed and voted upon. 

A Key Employee who wishes to use staff assistance, services or facilities for purposes other than 
carrying out professional responsibilities will disclose the Conflict to the Principal of the School 
who will exercise discretion in allowing or disallowing the proposed use in accordance with this 
Policy. 
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Annual Statements: 

Without limiting the general and continuing disclosure obligation set forth in the preceding 
section, the Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall distribute annually to all Trustees, 
Officers and Key Employees, a form soliciting the disclosure of all potential Conflicts of 
Interests, including specific information concerning the terms of any contract or transaction 
with the Corporation and whether the applicable processes set forth in this Policy were used. 
Each Trustee, Officer and Key Employee shall also annually sign a statement included with the 
form distributed by the Corporation which affirms such person: 

a. has received a copy of this Policy; 

b. has read and understands this Policy, and 

c. has agreed to comply with this Policy. 

Written disclosures shall be submitted to and reviewed by the Chairperson of the Board and the 
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. 

Related Party Transactions: 

A Related Party Transaction is a transaction in which the Corporation is a party and a Related 
Party (as defined above) has a financial interest or another material interest. All rules and 
principles related to disclosure of Conflicts of Interest apply to Related Party Transactions, but 
in addition, the Trustees must initiate a formal Audit Committee review or a review by a 
quorum of the Board consisting of Independent Trustees. 

Any Trustee, Officer or Key Employee with an interest in a Related Party Transaction shall make 
a good faith disclosure of all material facts related to such interest to the Audit Committee.  The 
Audit Committee shall review all the material facts related to the proposed Related Party 
Transaction and request any additional information that it deems necessary to complete such 
review.  

The Municipal Law prohibits transactions between Charter Schools and for-profit business 
entities in which a member of the Board of Trustees or a Key Employee has an interest if such 
Trustee or Key Employee has certain enumerated responsibilities. Accordingly, the Audit 
Committee will first determine whether or not the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee who has an 
interest in any proposed contract with a for-profit entity, has the power or duty, individually or 
as a member of the Board, to (1) negotiate, prepare, authorize or approve the contract or 
authorize payment thereunder; (2) audit bills or claims under the contract; or (3) appoint an 
officer or employee who has any of these powers or duties. If the interested Trustee, Officer or 
Key Employee does not have any of the enumerated responsibilities or if the proposed contract 
is with a not-for-profit entity, or is otherwise authorized by § 802 of the Municipal Law, the 
Committee may continue its review. 
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If a Related Party Transaction is otherwise authorized and the Related Party has a “substantial” 
financial interest or other material interest in such transaction, as assessed by the Audit 
Committee, the Audit Committee shall consider alternative transactions to the proposed 
transaction and the Chairperson of the Committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested 
person or committee to investigate alternatives. The Committee, after reviewing any such 
alternatives, shall determine whether the Corporation can obtain, with reasonable efforts, a 
more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give 
rise to a conflict of interest.  

The Audit Committee shall after considering alternative transactions and/or comparability data, 
determine whether the transaction or arrangement is fair, reasonable, and in the best interest 
of the Corporation at the time of its decision. 

Following its review the Audit Committee may approve the transaction, or may refer the matter 
to the Board of Trustees for approval by the Board.  

Upon receiving a recommendation from the Audit Committee, the Board may accept the 
recommendation or make an independent determination as to whether the proposed 
transaction is fair, reasonable and in the best interests of the Corporation. Upon the affirmative 
vote of not less than a majority of independent Trustees present, the Trustees may authorize 
the transaction.   

At the time of any deliberation or decision by the Audit Committee or the Board concerning the 
authorization of a proposed Related Party Transaction, the interested Trustee, Officer or Key 
Employee shall not be present and shall not attempt to improperly influence any deliberations 
or voting, provided that the Board, or Audit Committee, may request such individual to provide 
information regarding the Related Party Transaction prior to the commencement of 
deliberations or voting. 

The minutes of the meeting of the Board and the Audit Committee that conducted the initial 
review shall provide contemporaneous documentation of the basis for approval, including the 
Board’s consideration of any alternative transactions.  The minutes shall also contain the names 
of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or 
arrangement, the content of the discussion, and a record of any votes taken in connection with 
the proceedings. 

The Corporation shall not enter into a Related Party Transaction unless it is approved in 
accordance with this Policy. Any Related Party Transaction that is approved without 
complying with the procedure set forth in this section shall be void. 

Periodic Reviews 

To ensure that the KIPP NYC Public Charter Schools operate in a manner consistent with 
charitable purposes and do not engage in activities that could jeopardize tax-exempt status, 
periodic reviews shall be conducted by the Audit Committee of each Corporation. The Audit 
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Committee shall report to the Board of Trustees. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, 
include the following subjects:  

a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are fair and reasonable, based 
on competent survey information, and in the best interests of the Corporation. 

b. Whether any related party transactions or arrangements with or on behalf of the 
Corporation are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for 
goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, 
impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction. 

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy: 

If the Board has reasonable cause to believe that a Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed 
to disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall inform the individual of the basis for 
such belief and afford that person an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose. If, 
after hearing the response and after making further investigation as warranted by the 
circumstances, the Board determines that the Trustee, Officer or Key Employee has failed to 
disclose an actual or possible Conflict of Interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and 
corrective action. 

6 





 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

  
 

  
 

    
 

 
 

     
   

 
 

 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 

   
 

 

 

 
  

________________________________________________________________ 

________________________________________________________________ 

    

Disclosure of Financial Interest by a Current or Proposed Board of 
Trustees Member 

Name:  
  

Name of Charter School Education Corporation (the Charter School Name,
if the charter school is the only school operated by the education 
corporation): 

    

1. List all positions held on the education corporation Board of Trustees 
(“Board”) (e.g. president, treasurer, parent representative). 

2. Are you an employee of any school operated by the education corporation? 
 ____Yes ____No 

If Yes, for each school, please provide a description of the position(s) you 
hold, your responsibilities, your salary and your start date. 

3. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person employed by the school? 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 

4. Are you related, by blood, marriage, or legal adoption/guardianship, to any 
student currently enrolled in the school? 

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 

5. Are you related, by blood or marriage, to any person that could otherwise 
benefit from your participation as a board member of this school? 



 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 
 
 

  
 

 
 

 

 

    
 
 
 

 
 
 

  

    

If Yes, please describe the nature of your relationship and how this person 
could benefit from your participation. 

6. Are you a past, current, or prospective employee of the charter school, 
education corporation, and/or an entity that provides comprehensive 
management services (“CMO”), whether for-profit or not-for-profit, which 
contracts, or may contract, with the charter school or education corporation; 
or do you serve as an employee, officer, or director of, or own a controlling 
interest in, a business or entity that contracts, or does business with, or plans 
to contract or do business with, the charter school, education corporation, 
and/or a CMO, whether for-profit or not-for-profit, including, but not limited to, 
the lease of real or personal property to the said entities? 

 ____Yes ____No 

If Yes, please provide a description of the position(s) you hold, your 
responsibilities, your salary and your start date.  

7. Identify each interest/transaction (and provide the requested information) that 
you or any of your immediate family members or any persons who live with 
you in your house have held or engaged in with the charter school(s) 
operated by the education corporation during the time you have served on the 
Board, and in the six-month period prior to such service. If there has been no 
such interest or transaction, write None. Please note that if you answered 
Yes to Questions 2-3 above, you need not disclose again your employment 
status, salary, etc. 

Date(s) Nature of 
financial 

interest/transacti 
on 

Steps taken to 
avoid a conflict 

of interest, 
(e.g., did not 
vote, did not 
participate in 
discussion) 

Name of person 
holding interest or 

engaging in 
transaction and 
relationship to 

you 

P l e a s e  w r i t e  “ N o n e ”  i f  a p p l i c a b l e .  D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  



  
 

 

 
 

 
     

 

 
  

 

 

 

  

_______________________________ 

    

8. Identify each individual, business, corporation, union association, firm, 
partnership, franchise holding company, joint-stock company, business or real 
estate trust, non-profit organization, or other organization or group of people 
doing business with the school(s) operated by the education corporation and 
in which such entity, during the time of your tenure as a trustee, you and/or 
your immediate family member(s) or person(s) living in your house had a 
financial interest or other relationship. If you are a member, director, officer or 
employee of an organization formally partnered with the school(s) that is/are 
doing business with the school(s) through a management or services 
agreement, please identify only the name of the organization, your position in 
the organization, and the relationship between such organization and the 
school(s). If there was no financial interest, write “None.” 

Organization 
conducting

business with 
the school(s) 

Nature of 
business 

conducted 

Approximat
e value of 

the 
business 

conducted 

Name of Trustee 
and/or immediate 
family member of 

household holding an 
interest in the 
organization 

conducting business
with the school(s) and 

the nature of the 
interest 

Steps 
taken to 

avoid 
conflict of 

interest 

P l e a s e  w r i t

 

e  “ N o n e ”  i f  a p p l i c a b l e . D o  n o t  l e a v e  t h i s  s p a c e  b l a n k .  

 

Signature Date 

Please note that this document is considered a public record and, as such, may 
be made available to members of the public upon request under the Freedom of 
Information Law.  Personal contact information provided below will be redacted. 



    

last revised 06/8/2020 
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Report of Inspection / Test 
Annual NFPA 25 

2022-06-29 Conducted by: Jon Sostenuto 
Property 
Kipp High School Sirina Fire Protection 
201 East 144th Street 422A 
Bronx NY 10451 151 Herricks Road 

Garden City Park NY 11040 
Print Date: 2022-07-06 516-942-0400 

aborkacki@sirinafire.com 

Report of Inspection / Test General Questions 

OWNER SECTION 

đ Yes Is the building occupied? 

� No 

� NA 

Are all fire protection systems in service? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Has the system remained in service without 
modification since the last inspection? � No 

� NA 

SPRINKLER HEADS 

đ Yes Are there the proper number and type of spare 
sprinklers? � No 

� NA 

Are visible sprinklers in the proper position: upright, 
pendent, sidewall? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are visible sprinklers free of corrosion and physical 
damage? � No 

� NA 

Is there proper clearance below the sprinklers? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are visible sprinklers free of foreign materials including 
paint? � No 

� NA 

PIPES 

đ Yes Does visible pipe have no mechanical damage or leaks? 

� No 

� NA 

Does visible pipe have no external loads? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Is the pipe through freezers free if any ice blockage? 

� No 

� NA 

VALVE AREA 

đ Yes Are the gauges on system in good condition and 
showing normal water supply pressure? � No 

� NA 

Is the hydraulic name plate (calculated systems) 
attached securely to the riser and legible? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Do valve supervisory switches indicate movement? 

� No 

� NA 

The electrical waterflow alarm devices passed test by 
opening inspector's test connection/bypass connection 
with alarms actuating and flow observed? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are valve enclosures maintaining a minimum of 40 
degrees F? � No 

� NA 

Are gauges on non-supervised systems in good 
condition and showing normal water and air pressure? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Is the priming level correct and has the low air pressure 
signal passed it's test? � No 

� NA 

Has the quick opening device passed the test? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes OS&Y valves lubricated? 

� No 

� NA 

OS&Y valves excercised? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 
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DRY VALVE 

đ Yes Are enclosures around valves maintaining a minimum of 
40 degrees F? � No 

� NA 

Are the gauges on systems without low pressure alarms 
in good condition and showing normal air and water 
pressure? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes For freezer systems, gauge near compressor reading the 
same as gauge near the dry-pipe valve? � No 

� NA 

Are they free from physical damage? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are trim valves in appropriate (open or closed) position? 

� No 

� NA 

Is there no leakage in the intermediate chamber? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are the gauges on systems with low pressure alarms in 
good condition and showing normal air and water � No 
pressure? 

� NA 

Has the dry-pipe valve passed inspection? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Is the priming level correct and has the low air pressure 
signal passed it's test? � No 

� NA 

Has the quick opening device passed the test? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

DELUGE/PREACTION VALVES 

đ Yes For freezer systems, gauge near compressor reading the 
same as gauge near the preaction valve? � No 

� NA 

Are preaction and deluge valves free from physical 
damage? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are the electrical components in service? 

� No 

� NA 

Are trim valves in appropriate (open or closed) position? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Is there no leakage in the valve seat? 

� No 

� NA 

Are gauges on supervised systems indicate that normal 
pressure is being maintained? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Have preaction and deluge valves that need to be 
opened to be reset passed an internal inspection? � No 

� NA 

DELUGE TRIP TEST 

đ Yes Was there free discharge from all nozzles? 

� No 

� NA 

Pressure reading at hydraulically most remote nozzle: N/A 

Residual pressure reading at deluge valve: N/A Were results comparable to design values? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

ALARMS 

đ Yes Have low temperature alarms passed test? 

� No 

� NA 

Are alarms and supervisory devices not damaged? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 
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đ Yes Do low temperature alarms look ok? 

� No 

� NA 

Is the alarm valve free from physical damage? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Is the trim in correct (open or closed) position? 

� No 

� NA 

Is there no leakage in the retarding chamber or drains? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Have low temperature alarms passed test? 

� No 

� NA 

MAINTENANCE 

đ Yes Are dry-pipe systems kept in dry condition? 

� No 

� NA 

Have auxiliary drains been emptied? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Perform an obstruction investigation if any of the 
following were found: defective intake screen on pump � No 
supplied from open sources, obstructive material 

� NA discharged during flow tests, foreign material in dry-type 
valves, foreign material in water during drain test or 
plugging of inspector's test connection, plugging of pipe 
or sprinklers found, failure to flush yard piping or 
surrounding mains following new installation or repairs, 
record of broken mains in the vicinity, abnormal 
frequent false-tripping of dry valves, system has just 
been returned to service after more than 1 year, there is 
a reason to think the system contains sodium silicate or 
its derivatives or highly corrosive fluxes in copper pipe, 
raw water was pumped into the fire department 
connection, pinhole leaks, a 50% increase in time from 
the original system acceptance test required for water to 
reach the inspector's test connection during a full flow 
test 

Is interior of dry-pipe valves cleaned? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Have low points been drained before freezing weather? 

� No 

� NA 

Perform an obstruction investigation if any of the 
following were found: defective intake screen on pump 
supplied from open sources, obstructive material 
discharged during flow tests, foreign material in dry-type 
valves, foreign material in water during drain test or 
plugging of inspector's test connection, plugging of pipe 
or sprinklers found, failure to flush yard piping or 
surrounding mains following new installation or repairs, 
record of broken mains in the vicinity, abnormal 
frequent false-tripping of dry valves, system has just 
been returned to service after more than 1 year, there is 
a reason to think the system contains sodium silicate or 
its derivatives or highly corrosive fluxes in copper pipe, 
raw water was pumped into the fire department 
connection, pinhole leaks, a 50% increase in time from 
the original system acceptance test required for water to 
reach the inspector's test connection during a full flow 
test 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Have auxiliary drains been opened? 

� No 

� NA 

Have compressors and air dryers been maintained 
according to manufacturer's instructions? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

Copyright 2022 Inspect Point Page 3 of 24 



Report of Inspection / Test 
Annual NFPA 25 

2022-06-29 Conducted by: Jon Sostenuto 
Property 
Kipp High School Sirina Fire Protection 
201 East 144th Street 422A 
Bronx NY 10451 151 Herricks Road 

Garden City Park NY 11040 
Print Date: 2022-07-06 516-942-0400 

aborkacki@sirinafire.com 

đ Yes Have low points been drained before freezing weather? 

� No 

� NA 
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Report of Inspection / Test for System - Stair D Basement Cafe South Side 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 

Report of Inspection / Test for System - Stair D Floor 2 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 

Report of Inspection / Test for System - Stair D Floor 4 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 

Report of Inspection / Test for System - Stair D Floor 5 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 
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Report of Inspection / Test for System - Break Room Basement 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 

Report of Inspection / Test for System - Stair B Floor 1 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 

Report of Inspection / Test for System - Stair B Floor 2 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 

Report of Inspection / Test for System - Stair B Floor 3 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 
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Report of Inspection / Test for System - Stair B Floor 4 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 

Report of Inspection / Test for System - Stair B Floor 5 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 

Report of Inspection / Test for System - Stair A Floor 6 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 

Report of Inspection / Test for System - Stair D Basement Behind Stage 

INSPECTOR TEST CONNECTION 

đ Yes Is drain installed and in good working condition? (note 
material for install) � No 

� NA 

Return pressure before PRV N/A 

Static pressure before PRV N/A Residual pressure before PRV N/A 

đ Yes Is the condition of the gauge satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 
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Report of Inspection / Test for System - Basement Loading Dock Dry System 

DRY VALVE 

đ Yes Have automatic air maintenance devices passed test? 

� No 

� NA 

Water pressure before test? N/A 

Air pressure before test? N/A Controls sprinklers in? N/A 

Location of inspectors test valve? N/A Test pipe size? N/A 

At what PSI did the valve operate? N/A Time to trip? N/A 

Time to flow water from ITV? N/A đ Yes Was operation satisfactory? 

� No 

� NA 

Valve reset dry? Pass Condition of body interior? Pass 

Condition of inspectors test valve? Pass Condition of moving parts? Pass 

Condition of seats? Pass Condition of rubber facing? Pass 

Alarm operation? Pass Operation was? Pass 

MAINTENANCE 

đ Yes Has the interior of the dry pipe valve been inspected 
and cleaned thoroughly? � No 

� NA 

DRY VALVE TRIP TEST 

Dry Valve Size: Year of Mfr.: Accelerator Year of Mfr.: 

Make Model Serial no. Make Model Serial no. 

Time to Trip thru test 
pipe 

Water 
Pressure 

Air 
Pressure 

Trip point air 
pressure 

Time water reached test 
outlet 

Alarm 
Operated 

Without 
Accelerator 

With Accelerator 

DRY VALVE TRIP TEST (cont) 

đ Yes Has it passed air leakage test? 

� No 

� NA 

Report of Inspection / Test for Asset - Standpipe Risers Stairs A, B, C, D, E, F, 
Behind Stage And Hallway 
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INSPECTION 

đ Yes Are the control valves with locks or electrical supervision 
accessible? � No 

� NA 

Are the control valves in correct (open or closed) 
position? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are the control valves  properly identified? 

� No 

� NA 

Are the hose valves in place and free of damage or 
leaks? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are the hose connections caps in place and free of 
damage? � No 

� NA 

Are the hose connections valves free of physical or 
visible obstructions? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are the pressure restriction devices in the correct 
locations? � No 

� NA 

Is the standpipe piping on the system free of damage? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are the control valves on the piping free of damage? 

� No 

� NA 

Are all of the pipe support devices (hangers, seismic 
bracing, etc.) in place and free of damage? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are hose gaskets in place and free of damage? 

� No 

� NA 

Are hoses connected to the rack nipple or valve? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are the hose tests up to date? 

� No 

� NA 

Are hose nozzles in place and free of damage? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

STANDPIPE FLOW TEST 

Record static pressure (psi) N/A Record residual pressure (psi) N/A 

đ Yes Is flow observed? 

� No 

� NA 

Are results comparable to previous test? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

TESTING 

đ Yes Has master PRV passed partial flow test? 

� No 

� NA 

Have hose valves for Class I and Class III systems passed 
opening and closing test? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Did hose valve for Class II systems pass opening and 
closing test? � No 

� NA 

Have the pressure reducing valves on hose connections 
and hose rack assemblies passed the partial flow test? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

HOSE VALVES - Standpipe Risers Stairs A, B, C, D, E, F, Behind Stage And Hallway 

Location Has PRV Good Condition PSI Exercised Notes 

Stair A Floor 6 No Yes 90 Yes 

Stair A Floor 5 No Yes 95 Yes 

Stair A Floor 4 No Yes 100 Yes 
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Fire Pump Information 

Property Name Kipp NYC College Preparation High School 

Property Address 201 East 144th Street 

Pump (Horizontal or Vertical): Horizontal 

Pump Manufacturer Peerless Pump 

Shop/Serial Number 9927044200-10-A 

Model 5 AEF 8N 

Rated GPM 1000 

Rated Pressure 85 

Rated 150 Pressure 64 

Rated 0 Pressure 100 

Rated RPM 3550 

Suction Street 

Driver, (electric or diesel engine) Electric 

Engine Manufacturer Marathon 

Engine Shop/Serial Number C0092751-90-27-02 

Engine Model KK236TSD 4022BCL 

Rated Horsepower 60 

Rated Speed 3555 

Rated Voltage 400 

Rated Amps 77.5 

Phase Cycles 3 

Service Factor 1.15 

Jockey Pump Manufacturer Grondfos 

OWNER SECTION 

Is there a Jockey Pump on system? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Jockey Settings? (on/off) 

� No 

� NA 

Is the fire pump in service? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Has the pump remained in service since the last 
inspection? � No 

� NA 

INSPECTION 
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đ Yes Pump house/room proper temperature? 

� No 

� NA 

Ventilating louvers free to operate? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are suction, discharge and bypass valves open? 

� No 

� NA 

Is Piping free from leaks? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Suction and system pressure gauges normal? 

� No 

� NA 

Suction reservoir, if provided, full? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Wet pit suction screens are clean and in place? 

� No 

� NA 

Waterflow test valves in closed position? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Transfer switch indicating normal situation? 

� No 

� NA 

Isolation switch closed? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Pump in correct phase? 

� No 

� NA 

Oil level in motor sight glass in correct range? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Circulation relief valve flowing water? 

� No 

� NA 

Pressure relief valves operating with proper pressure 
downstream while pump is operational? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

TESTING 

đ Yes Electric pump started automatically? 

� No 

� NA 

Electric motor driven pump ran for 10 min? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Packing gland showing slight discharge? (Adjust if 
necessary) � No 

� NA 

For automatic stop controllers, record time pump runs 
after starting: 

N/A 

đ Yes Circulation and pressure relief valves operated properly 
during all flow tests? � No 

� NA 

All alarm conditions simulated? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

What is the location of the test header? N/A Distance from test header to discharge location? N/A 

MAINTENANCE 

đ Yes Do Circuit breakers appear clean? 

� No 

� NA 

Pressure gauges and sensors accurate? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Control and power wiring tight? 

� No 

� NA 

FLOW TEST 
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đ Yes For electric motors operating at the rated voltage and 
frequency, is the ampere demand on each phase less � No 
than or equal to the product of the full load ampere 

� NA rating times the allowable service factor as stamped on 
the motor nameplate? 

Was the manufacturer's' certified pump test curve 
available for comparison to the acceptance test? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Was the governor set to properly regulate the engine 
speed at rated pump speed? � No 

� NA 

Did the unadjusted performance discharge curve meet 
or exceed the fire protection system demands? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes For electric motors operating under varying voltage, did 
the voltage stay within the range of 95% to 110% of the � No 
rated voltage during the test? 

� NA 

Did engine-drive unit show no signs of overload or 
stress? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Was the unit started and brought up to rated speed 
without interruption under discharge conditions equal � No 
to peak load? 

� NA 

Did the pump perform equal to the manufacturer's 
curve within the accuracy limits of the test equipment? 

đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes For electric motors operating under varying voltage, was 
the product of the actual voltage and current demand � No 
on each phase less than or equal to the product of the 

� NA rated full load current times the rated voltage times the 
allowable service factor? 

Was equipment and gauges calibrated? đ Yes 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Did the gear drive assembly operate without excessive 
objectionable noise, vibration, or heating? � No 

� NA 
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PERFORMANCE 

Rated % Driver speed: 
RPM 

Total Flow Net Pressure: 
PSI 

Discharge Pressure: 
PSI 

Suction Pressure: 
PSI 

0% N/A N/A 0.0 0.0 0.0 

50% N/A N/A 0.0 0.0 0.0 

100% N/A N/A 0.0 0.0 0.0 

150% N/A N/A 0.0 0.0 0.0 

ELECTRIC MOTOR 

L1 Voltage L1 Amperes L2 Voltage L2 Amperes L3 Voltage L3 Amperes 

0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

50% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

100% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

150% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Pump Flow Detail Coefficient (same for all): N/A Nozzle/Orifice Size: N/A (inches) 

PITOT 

1 2 3 4 5 6 

0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

50% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

100% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

150% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

FLOW 

0% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

50% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

100% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

150% N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Fire department connection  - East 144th street combination connection  - 1 

FDC 

đ Yes Is the FDC plainly visible/accessible? 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Do the swivels operate and are the caps/gaskets in 
place? � No 

� NA 

Copyright 2022 Inspect Point Page 14 of 24 



Report of Inspection / Test 
Annual NFPA 25 

2022-06-29 Conducted by: Jon Sostenuto 
Property 
Kipp High School Sirina Fire Protection 
201 East 144th Street 422A 
Bronx NY 10451 151 Herricks Road 

Garden City Park NY 11040 
Print Date: 2022-07-06 516-942-0400 

aborkacki@sirinafire.com 

đ Yes Are the FDC signs all in place? 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Does the check valve have a ball drip installed? 

� No 

� NA 

Fire department connection  - Park Ave combination connection  - 2 

FDC 

đ Yes Is the FDC plainly visible/accessible? 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Do the swivels operate and are the caps/gaskets in 
place? � No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are the FDC signs all in place? 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Does the check valve have a ball drip installed? 

� No 

� NA 

Fire department connection  - East 146th street combination connection  - 3 

FDC 

đ Yes Is the FDC plainly visible/accessible? 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Do the swivels operate and are the caps/gaskets in 
place? � No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are the FDC signs all in place? 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Does the check valve have a ball drip installed? 

� No 

� NA 

Fire department connection  - Canal place combination connection  - 4 

FDC 

đ Yes Is the FDC plainly visible/accessible? 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Do the swivels operate and are the caps/gaskets in 
place? � No 

� NA 

đ Yes Are the FDC signs all in place? 

� No 

� NA 

đ Yes Does the check valve have a ball drip installed? 

� No 

� NA 

MAIN DRAIN FLOW TESTS 

System Initial Static Residual Static Seconds to 
Return to 

Initial Static 

Flow 
Observed? 

Are results 
comparable 
to previous 

test? 

Stair D Basement Cafe South Side 155 85 120 0 Yes Yes 

Stair D Floor 2 140 85 105 10 Yes Yes 

Stair D Floor 4 140 65 90 0 Yes Yes 

Stair D Floor 5 130 60 85 0 Yes Yes 

Break Room Basement 150 90 120 10 Yes Yes 
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VALVES 

System Description Location 
Valve 
Type Size Secured 

Ope 
n 

Easily 
Accessible Signs Exercised 

# of 
Turn 

s 
Flow 
Pass 

Tam 
per 

Pass 

OS&Y 8 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

OS&Y 8 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

Butterfly 8 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

Butterfly 8 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

Butterfly 8 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

Butterball 2 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

Butterball 2 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

Butterfly 3 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes Pass Pass 

Butterfly 4 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes Pass Pass 

OS&Y 8 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

OS&Y 8 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

OS&Y 8 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

OS&Y 8 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

OS&Y 8 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

OS&Y 8 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes N/A Pass 

Butterfly 6 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes Fail Pass 

Butterfly 6 " Monitored Yes Yes Yes Yes Pass Pass 
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Annual NFPA 25 
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Questions with Photos and Notes 

Are the FDC signs all in place? 

Notes: 

Yes 

Are the FDC signs all in place? 

Notes: 

Faded combination FDC sign. Edward is replacing 

Yes 
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Are the FDC signs all in place? 

Notes: 

Yes 
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Are the FDC signs all in place? 

Notes: 

Yes 
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Deficiencies - Hose Valves - Standpipe Risers Stairs A, B, C, D, E, F, Behind Stage And Hallway 

Location 
Good Condition?: No 

Notes: 

Wrong hose valve thread. Needs adapter or to change hose valve 

Deficiencies - Fire Hoses - Standpipe Risers Stairs A, B, C, D, E, F, Behind Stage And Hallway 

Location: 
Make: Croker 
Size: 1 1/2” 
Length: 3-125’ 
Pass?: Fail 

Notes: 

Customer requested (2) - 2 1/2"x 1 1/2" hose valve adapter . For 1 1/2" hose 

Deficiencies - Valves 

Location: 
Description: Riser Control Valve 

Notes: 

Tamper is coming in to panel as a waterflow . Reprogram from waterflow alarm to tamper switch supervisory . Loop 1 module 147 
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Inspector Signature 

I state that the information on this form is correct at the time and place of my inspection, and all equipment tested at this time was left in 
operational condition upon completion of this inspection except as noted. 

Inspector Name 

Jon Sostenuto 

Signature Date Completed 

2022-06-29 

Client Signature 

I state that the information on this form is correct at the time and place of my inspection, and all equipment tested at this time was left in 
operational condition upon completion of this inspection except as noted. 

Client Name 

Edward 

Signature Date Completed 

2022-06-29 
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